H : 109 3" Ave S
Clty Of Franklln Franklin, TN 37064
(615) 791-3217
FRANKLIN Meeting Agenda

TENMNESSEE

Ethics Commission

Friday, September 1, 2023 1:00 PM Board Room

CALL TO ORDER

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

1. Consideration Of Approval Of Minutes Of The August 14, 2023 Ethics Commission Meeting
EXECUTIVE SESSION

2. Recess Into Executive Session

3. Consideration Of Actions From Executive Session

ADJOURN

Anyone needing accommodations due to disabilities please contact the ADA Coordinator at 615-791-3277 at least 24 hours prior to
the meeting.
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109 3 Ave S

City of Franklin Eranklin, TN 37064
(615) 791-3217
F }.{. 4\n I}:fH_l_l_Ll N Meeting Minutes
Ethics Committee
Monday, August 14, 2023 12:00 PM Board Room

CALL TO ORDER
Chairman Jim Martin called the meeting to order at 12:00 PM

Board Members Present: Jerry Sharber, Vona Wilson, Jim Martin
Board Members Absent: Machelle Thompson, Juanita Patton (recused)

Staff Present: Angie Johnson, Tabitha Langley

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

1. Consideration Of Approval Of Minutes
July 27, 2023 Ethics Commission Special Meeting, 8:00 AM
July 27, 2023 Ethics Commission Special Hearing, 12:00 PM
Sponsors:

A motion was made by Commissioner Sharber, seconded by Commissioner Wilson to approve the July 27,
2023 Ethics Commission Special Meeting 8 AM Minutes and the July 27, 2023 Ethics Commission Special
Hearing 12 PM Minutes. The motion passed 3-0.

NEW BUSINESS

2. Consideration Of Approval Of Findings of Fact And Conclusions of Law Relating to the Ethics Hearing
Regarding Alderman Gabrielle Hanson Held On July 27, 2023
Sponsors:

The Commissioners discussed the item. This discussion can be referenced in the Court Reporter's transcript.

A motion was made by Commissioner Sharber, seconded by Commissioner Wilson to approve the Findings
of Fact and Conclusions of Law as presented. The motion passed 3-0.

OTHER BUSINESS

ADJOURN
A motion was made by Commissioner Sharber, seconded by Commissioner Wilson to Adjourn the Meeting. The
motion passed 3-0.

Meeting Adjourned @ 12:16 PM

Jim Martin, Chair
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Ethics Committee Agenda Meeting Minutes August 14, 2023

Minutes Prepared by Sarah Schilling, Assistant Deputy City Recorder, City Administrator's Office - 8/29/2023, 2:32
PM
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The following contains the complete transcript for
the August 14, 2023 City of Franklin Ethics
Commission Meeting.

Prepared by Shana Crawford, LCR of Lexitas Legal
TENNEESSEE
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ETHICSCOMMISSION MEETING

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS
August 14, 2023

&EXITASW

Lexitas Legal TENNESSEE | 1015 Avery Park Dr| Smyrna, TN 37167 | (615) 595-0073|
tn.scheduling@lexitaslegal.com
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Transcri pt
O
City of Franklin
Et hi cs Comm ssion Meeting

August 14, 2023

Shana Crawford, LCR
Nashvil |l e, Tennessee

(615) 595- 0073
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* * *

MR MARTIN. Good afternoon. This is Mnday,
August 14th, 2023, a little after noon. And this is a called
meeting of the city of Franklin Ethics Conmi ssion, |I'mJim
Martin, Vona Wlson is here to ny left -- excuse ne, she's to
my right and Jerry Sharber is to ny left. And | understand
that Ms. Thonpson is not going to be able to join us today;
Is that correct? But we do have a quorum and based upon that
quorum we will proceed. Last week I was furnished a draft
of an agenda for today, which included approval of the
m nutes of the meeting of July 27th, 2023.

Ms. WIson, have you had a chance to review the
m nut es?

M5. WLSON: Yes.

MR. MARTIN. Do you have any changes, corrections,
additions or deletions?

M5. WLSON: | do not.

MR, MARTIN. M. Sharber, have you had a chance to
review the mnutes?

MR SHARBER | have.

MR MARTIN. Very well. Do | have a notion to
approve the mnutes?

MR SHARBER  So noved.

M5. WLSON: | second.

MR. MARTIN. Mbtion has been made and a second to

Lexi tas - TENNESSEE
(615) 595- 0073
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approve the mnutes of July 27th 2023; all in favor say aye.

M5. WLSON  Aye.

MR. SHARBER  Aye.

MR MARTIN  Aye. Very good.

W al so had an executive nmeeting that norning. Do
we have mnutes of that executive session? W do not.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: Wl |, the 8:00 a.m one,
just the special mnutes were also attached. So the notion
-- the notion that you just made covered both sets of
m nut es.

MR MARTIN  They covered both.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER:  Uh- huh, yes, sir.

MR MARTIN. Both the 8:00 a.m session and the
noon session.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER:  Yes, sir. Yes.

MR MARTIN Al right. Very good.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER:  Yes, | apol ogi ze.

MR MARTIN: In addition, | was furnished the
transcript of the proceedings on July 27th, 2023. M.

Wl son, did you also receive a copy of the transcript?

MB. WLSON: | did.

MR MARTIN. And M. Sharber, did you receive a
copy of the transcript?

MR SHARBER | did.

MR MARTIN.  Very good. Qur counsel, M. Ashworth,

Lexi tas - TENNESSEE
(615) 595- 0073
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drafted a proposed witten decision that was part of the
papers that | was furnished | ast week. And Ms. WIlson, did
you al so receive after draft of a witten decision that was
prepared on our behalf by Ms. Gail Vaughn Ashworth?

M5. WLSON: Yes, | did.

MR MARTIN. M. Sharber, did you receive it as
wel | ?

MR. SHARBER: | did.

MR MARTIN. Very good.

M. Horwitz, did you have a chance to | ook at the
transcript and/or the witten decision that's been drafted
for our consideration?

MR HORWTZ: | did not receive it, but |I have it.
| found it on the notice.

MR MARTIN. Ckay. Very good.

MR HORWTZ: | do have -- | don't want to
interrupt this -- the proceedings, but | do have two matters
regarding it that | would like to be heard on at sone point,
but I would let the --

MR MARTIN. That's fine. |If you don't mnd, | am
hard of hearing, so you will need to el evate your voi ce.

MR HORWTZ: | apologize. 1Is this working this
time?

MR. MARTIN. Yeah, now, that works fine. Thank
you.

Lexi tas - TENNESSEE
(615) 595- 0073
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MR HORWTZ: |'Il get closer.

MR MARTIN.  Very good.

So Ms. Wlson, did you have a chance to study the
draft that was presented for our considered and do you have
any changes, corrections, additions or deletions that you
woul d care to offer?

M5. WLSON: | did reviewit and | don't have any
changes, or additions or deletions.

MR MARTIN Al right. M. Sharber?

MR SHARBER: | did receive it. | reviewed it, and
| have one, |'mgoing to call it a suggestion.

MR MARTIN  Ckay.

MR SHARBER It does not have -- I'mnot totally
firmon having this, but in the findings of fact under
section one, Alderman Gabrielle Hanson is a duly elected city
official for the Gty of Franklin,

MR MARTI N  Unh- huh.

MR. SHARBER. M suggestion and/or question is:
Shoul d we include in there the date that she was el ected and
the date that she was sworn in?

MR MARTIN. Well, we don't have that in the
evi dence, so it would be hard for us to make that finding.

MR. SHARBER. Ckay. | nean, that's public record.

MR MARTIN:  Yeah, but there's a whole I ot of the

stuff that's out there.
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MR. SHARBER  Yeah, that's true.

MR MARTIN  You know, unless it was evidence
presented to us during the course of the proceeding, | don't
think it should be in our --

MR SHARBER And it was not.

MR MARTIN And It was not.

M. Horwitz, yeah, that's fine. You wanted to
address conmm ssi on?

MR HORWTZ: Yes. Regarding two matters. The
first and nost inportant one is the |ast page before the
transcript, the judicial review conponent.

MR MARTIN Yes. And this is the page entitled,
" Recommendat i on" ?

MR HORWTZ: No, it's the page entitled, "Judicial
Revi ew'.

SHARBER:  Judicial review.
HORWTZ: It should be the |ast page.

2 D 3

MARTIN.  Oh, okay. Yes.

MR HORWTZ: | want to make sure everybody is on
the same page here. So that first subsection, Number 1,
provi des that an appeal nay be filed within 30-days, | think
everyone is in agreement that that is correct.

The second portion, | amjust going to read it.
"Upon failure to timely request judicial review of the

decision by wit of certiorari, as provided in the section,

Lexi tas - TENNESSEE
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the decision shall be binding on final upon all parties".

Now, | understand fromthis -- this provision from
the rules, that the decision is not binding until the appeal
process has either concluded or an appeal has not been taken.
And the reason | enphasize this is because the Cty's
attorneys have al ready approached the Board of Al dernen
before this body has even approved this finding | ast week,
before the appeal process has even begun to try to present
findi ngs.

Now, | thought we were clear about the fact we do
intend to appeal. And | want to make sure everyone here is
clear. There is an appellate process that ought to be
respected. The decision is not binding and final until that
process has concl uded.

So to the extent that there was any doubt, we
intend to filed a petition for wit of certiorari, exercise
appel late rights. And ny ask would be that everybody respect
the process -- the due process that is part of this order, as
part of the municipal code and that the Gty's counsel not
rush to the Board of Alderman to present findings before that
process is conplete.

MR MARTIN.  Well, help me understand your concern.
Par agraph one, says that you have 30 days to petition for a
for wit of certiorari, paragraph tw says if you don't do

that, then the decision of to conmm ssion becones final. |'m
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not clear what your concern is.

MR HORWTZ: After we take this appeal, which we
intend to do, while the appellate process is underway, the
Cty's attorneys are going to approach the Board of Al dernen
and present this body's decision as if it were final and
bi nding when it is not yet final and binding and ask the
Board of Alderman to act based on a none final, not yet
bi ndi ng and ask the Board of Alderman to act based on a
nonfinal, not yet binding decision. That's my concern.

MR MARTIN. Well, let ne say that: Wile |
respect your concern and |'mnot saying it doesn't have
merit, that's beyond the scope of our consideration. Al

that we are asked to do is to submt the finding and

recommendation. What's done after that is beyond our
contr ol

MR HORWTZ: Understood. | just want to nake sure
because this is your action and they are your attorneys
that --

MR MARTIN. No, our attorney is Gail Ashworth.

MR HORWTZ: That's who | amreferring to.

MR MARTIN  Gail Vaughn Ashworth. The Gty of
Franklin is represented by separate counsel. And what the
City does is certainly up to the City. They will be guided
by their |awer, we are gui ded by our counsel.

MR HORWTZ: | understand that. And I'mreferring

Lexi tas - TENNESSEE
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to Ms. Ashworth here. | want to nake sure that everyone here
and Ms. Ashworth are in agreement that it is not this body's

intention for its decision to be final and binding until the

appel | ate process has been concl uded.

MR MARTIN It's our intention comply with the
requi rements of the Miunicipal Code as stated, and | don't
think it's a msstatenment of that.

MR HORWTZ: No, it's a correct statenent.

MR MARTIN.  Well, that is our intention.

MR HORWTZ: Ckay. So next week when Ms. Ashworth
has pl anned to address the Board of Alderman to present this
decision as final and binding, | want to nmake sure that this
comm ssion is not on board with that.

MR MARTIN.  Well, I'mnot giving any opinion at
all. I'mtelling you that this is what the Code says and our
responsibility is to enter an order, which we are hopefully
going to do.

\What happens next week is beyond the scope of our
consi derati on.

MR HORWTZ: Well, not if it's --

MR MARTIN I'mnot going to give you an advisory
opi nion on what shoul d or shouldn't be done next week.

MR HORWTZ: That | appreciate it. | want to nake
sure that actions that are taken on this body's behalf

comport with what this body is intending to do, and it's ny
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understanding fromthis accurate statenent, that we are al
in agreement that this decision is not binding and is not
final until the appellate process has been conpl et ed.

MR MARTIN. W are in the agreement that this is
what the Mancipl e Code says and our responsibility is [imted
to maki ng now our findings, which we are going to do. W
under stand the concern.

And the City Attorney is here, and |'msure that
the Gty will take your concern into consideration. But
it's -- your -- your point maybe we -- it's certainly maybe
wel | taken, but its not sonething that we can do anyt hing
about. In other words if -- if the Board of Mayor and
Al derman el ected to act on our recommendation, your point is
they shouldn't do that until there has been a final review by
the Chancery Court of WIlianson County. Well, I'mnot going
to tell the board of Al derman what they should or shoul dn't
do. That is conpletely up to the Board.

MR HORWTZ: | just want to make sure that the
Board understands, that everybody el se understands that this
body's recommendation is not yet final and it is not yet bind
I ng.

MR MARTIN.  Well, |'ve heard what you've said,
think that's all you can say about it. And |'ve said all |
intend to say about it. Thank you.

Do you have anything el se you want to bring to our
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attention?

MR HORWTZ: Yes. The only other thing: | want
to confirmthere have been no further deliberations between
the hearing a few weeks ago and today?

MR MARTIN. Do what?

MR HORW TZ: There have been no further
del i berations regarding this matter between July 27th and
today; is that correct?

MR MARTIN.  Well, you tell me. I'mnot going to
testify. | will state frankly, | have not spoken to Ms.

Wl son until this norning when she got here and we haven't
tal ked about this case until we walked into this room And |
have not spoken to M. Sharber and nor have | spoken to M.
Thormpson.  And | woul d assune that nobody el se has tal ked

wi th one another either.

W' ve been instructed clearly to conply with the
Qpen Meetings Act and that --

MR HORWTZ: And that's --

MR MARTIN  And this conm ssion has conplied with
it strictly.

MR HORWTZ: And that was ny understanding, that
was ny assunption. And the reason | nention it is because
there are -- at least fromny reading of the findings of fact
i ncl uded here and conparing them against the transcript,

multiple findings of fact that were inserted into this
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proposed witten decision this body did not make. So to the
extend that the transcript is inconsistent with findings that
were inserted in here by counsel, | just want to reflect that
there were not further deliberations undertaken between the
hearing and today.

MR MARTIN Well, the draft of the findings that
have been presented to us along with the transcript is what
we are to consider today. | was pretty clear, | believe, at
the neeting that ny vote was based upon the entire record,
whi ch included the conplaints that were presented, not the
ones that weren't presented, the answer that was filed on
behal f of your client, and all of the exhibits and the
presentations that were nade by the various fol ks that cane
f orward

So ny vote is based upon the entire record that was
before ne. And | feel like the other nenbers of the
comm ssion voted based upon that entire record as well. This
written docunment now will reflect our -- our conpletely
accurate ruling based upon that entire record. The fact that
a -- a verbal comrent wasn't necessarily made during the
course of that neeting and, in ny mnd, does not preclude us
fromincluding facts as long as they are supported by the
record.

MR HORWTZ: And | appreciate that that is

M. Chairman's view here. | do want to note an objection to

Lexi tas - TENNESSEE
(615) 595- 0073

13
Page 18 of 26


http://www.elitereportingservices.com

© o0 ~N oo o B~ W NP

T N T T N N O e S S S T T
g &5 W N P O © © N O 00 N~ w N -, O

findings that were included in this record that were not nade
by the comm ssi on.

MR MARTIN  That were not articulated verbally?

MR HORWTZ: Correct.

MR MARTIN.  Well, you and | just have to agree to
disagree at this point. If the findings in this order are
supported by the record, then it's ny suggestion that we are
aut horized to approve this order. M. Ashworth, do you
concur or disagree?

M5. ASHWORTH | concur

MR MARTIN  Very well.

MR HORWTZ: | just want my objection noted.

MR MARTIN. Al right. Very good.

Al right. So then the question becones, do any of
you have any concerns about the accuracy of the draft that
we' ve received and whether there is a factual basis to
support what's contained in the draft?

MR SHARBER | do not.

M5. WLSON: | do not.

MR MARTIN. And | do not either. |'ve read the
entire transcript. |'ve read the draft. The fact that naybe
sonething wasn't articulated in our neeting on the 27th of
July, that's not in our witten decision in the chairperson's
m nd does not preclude our inclusion in our witten decision.

So based upon what's been presented, do we have a notion to

Lexi tas - TENNESSEE
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approve the draft of the witten decision of Cty of Franklin
Et hi cs Commi ssion as brought in this matter?

MR, SHARBER So noved.

M5. WLSON:  Second.

MR MARTIN Al in favor?

MR. SHARBER  Aye.

M5. WLSON.  Aye.

MR MARTIN. And | vote as well in favor of
approving it.

| don't know of any other business. M. Ashworth,
do you know of any other business to conme before us?

M5. ASHWORTH: No, | do not. | think we can get
the clean copy, | think that is marked a draft, entered today
so that M. Horwitz can have his copy today.

MR MARTIN. So if we have the clean copy, we can

sign off on that it before leave. M. Horwitz, good to see

you.

MR HORWTZ: | guess, let me just ask: So the
Comm ssion has just made a recommendation, that's paragraph
16 here, and this comes back to the first issue that |
addressed, the timng of that reconmendation?

MR MARTIN Do what?

MR HORWTZ: |'mon the -- the provision that was
just approved titled, "Reconmmendation", as paragraph 16.

MR MARTIN:  Yes.
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MR HORWTZ: The timng of that recommendation is
not reflected here.

MR MARTIN We will |eave that to the Board. W
will |eave that to the Board.

MR HORWTZ: | would like to know the timng of
this Conmm ssion's recomendation to the Board.

MR MARTIN.  Qur reconmendation is clear. Wen and
i f the Board acts on our recomendation will be up to the
Board of Mayor and Al dermen.

MR HORWTZ: What | amtrying to pin down is when
the recommendation is made, and what |'masking is that it
not be nade until the appellate process is concl uded.

MR MARTIN | understand your request. W are
maki ng our reconmendation as reflected in this witten
docunent. Wien and if the Board acts on it will be up to the
Board okay. Thank you.

If there is no further business before the
Conmi ssion, do | have a notion to adjourn?

SHARBER:  So noved.
WLSON:  Second.
MARTIN. Al if favor?
SHARBER:  Aye.

WLSON:  Aye.

2 5 » 3 » 3

MARTIN. Sane here. If you will record ny vote

as aye. M. Horwitz, good to see you.
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REPORTER S CERTI FI CATE

STATE OF TENNESSEE
COUNTY OF DAVI DSON

I, SHANA C. CRAWORD, Licensed Court Reporter, with
offices in Nashville, Tennessee, hereby certify that I
reported the foregoing Meeting by machi ne shorthand to the
best of ny skills and abilities, and thereafter the sane was
reduced to typewitten form by ne.

| further certify that | amnot related to any of
the parties naned herein, nor their counsel, and have no
interest, financial or otherwise, in the outcome of the
proceedi ngs.

| further certify that in order for this document
to be considered a true and correct copy, it must bear ny
original signature and that any unauthorized reproduction in
whol e or in part and/or transfer of this docunent is not
authorized, wll not be considered authentic, and will be in

viol ati on of Tennessee Code Annotated 39-14-104, Theft of
Servi ces.

Gl

SHANA C. CRAWFORD, LCR
Li censed Court Reporter (TN)
LCR #859 - Expires: 6/30/2024
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             1                             *  *  *



             2            MR. MARTIN:  Good afternoon.  This is Monday,



             3  August 14th, 2023, a little after noon.  And this is a called



             4  meeting of the city of Franklin Ethics Commission, I'm Jim



             5  Martin, Vona Wilson is here to my left -- excuse me, she's to



             6  my right and Jerry Sharber is to my left.  And I understand



             7  that Ms. Thompson is not going to be able to join us today;



             8  is that correct?  But we do have a quorum and based upon that



             9  quorum, we will proceed.  Last week I was furnished a draft



            10  of an agenda for today, which included approval of the



            11  minutes of the meeting of July 27th, 2023.



            12            Ms. Wilson, have you had a chance to review the



            13  minutes?



            14            MS. WILSON:  Yes.



            15            MR. MARTIN:  Do you have any changes, corrections,



            16  additions or deletions?



            17            MS. WILSON:  I do not.



            18            MR. MARTIN:  Mr. Sharber, have you had a chance to



            19  review the minutes?



            20            MR. SHARBER:  I have.



            21            MR. MARTIN:  Very well.  Do I have a motion to



            22  approve the minutes?



            23            MR. SHARBER:  So moved.



            24            MS. WILSON:  I second.



            25            MR. MARTIN:  Motion has been made and a second to
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             1  approve the minutes of July 27th 2023; all in favor say aye.



             2            MS. WILSON:  Aye.



             3            MR. SHARBER:  Aye.



             4            MR. MARTIN:  Aye.  Very good.



             5            We also had an executive meeting that morning.  Do



             6  we have minutes of that executive session?  We do not.



             7            UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Well, the 8:00 a.m. one,



             8  just the special minutes were also attached.  So the motion



             9  -- the motion that you just made covered both sets of



            10  minutes.



            11            MR. MARTIN:  They covered both.



            12            UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Uh-huh, yes, sir.



            13            MR. MARTIN:  Both the 8:00 a.m. session and the



            14  noon session.



            15            UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Yes, sir.  Yes.



            16            MR. MARTIN:  All right.  Very good.



            17            UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Yes, I apologize.



            18            MR. MARTIN:  In addition, I was furnished the



            19  transcript of the proceedings on July 27th, 2023.  Ms.



            20  Wilson, did you also receive a copy of the transcript?



            21            MS. WILSON:  I did.



            22            MR. MARTIN:  And Mr. Sharber, did you receive a



            23  copy of the transcript?



            24            MR. SHARBER:  I did.



            25            MR. MARTIN:  Very good.  Our counsel, Ms. Ashworth,
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             1  drafted a proposed written decision that was part of the



             2  papers that I was furnished last week.  And Ms. Wilson, did



             3  you also receive after draft of a written decision that was



             4  prepared on our behalf by Ms. Gail Vaughn Ashworth?



             5            MS. WILSON:  Yes, I did.



             6            MR. MARTIN:  Mr. Sharber, did you receive it as



             7  well?



             8            MR. SHARBER:  I did.



             9            MR. MARTIN:  Very good.



            10            Mr. Horwitz, did you have a chance to look at the



            11  transcript and/or the written decision that's been drafted



            12  for our consideration?



            13            MR. HORWITZ:  I did not receive it, but I have it.



            14  I found it on the notice.



            15            MR. MARTIN:  Okay.  Very good.



            16            MR. HORWITZ:  I do have -- I don't want to



            17  interrupt this -- the proceedings, but I do have two matters



            18  regarding it that I would like to be heard on at some point,



            19  but I would let the --



            20            MR. MARTIN:  That's fine.  If you don't mind, I am



            21  hard of hearing, so you will need to elevate your voice.



            22            MR. HORWITZ:  I apologize.  Is this working this



            23  time?



            24            MR. MARTIN:  Yeah, now, that works fine.  Thank



            25  you.

�                                                               6









             1            MR. HORWITZ:  I'll get closer.



             2            MR. MARTIN:  Very good.



             3            So Ms. Wilson, did you have a chance to study the



             4  draft that was presented for our considered and do you have



             5  any changes, corrections, additions or deletions that you



             6  would care to offer?



             7            MS. WILSON:  I did review it and I don't have any



             8  changes, or additions or deletions.



             9            MR. MARTIN:  All right.  Mr. Sharber?



            10            MR. SHARBER:  I did receive it.  I reviewed it, and



            11  I have one, I'm going to call it a suggestion.



            12            MR. MARTIN:  Okay.



            13            MR. SHARBER:  It does not have -- I'm not totally



            14  firm on having this, but in the findings of fact under



            15  section one, Alderman Gabrielle Hanson is a duly elected city



            16  official for the City of Franklin.



            17            MR. MARTIN:  Uh-huh.



            18            MR. SHARBER:  My suggestion and/or question is:



            19  Should we include in there the date that she was elected and



            20  the date that she was sworn in?



            21            MR. MARTIN:  Well, we don't have that in the



            22  evidence, so it would be hard for us to make that finding.



            23            MR. SHARBER:  Okay.  I mean, that's public record.



            24            MR. MARTIN:  Yeah, but there's a whole lot of the



            25  stuff that's out there.
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             1            MR. SHARBER:  Yeah, that's true.



             2            MR. MARTIN:  You know, unless it was evidence



             3  presented to us during the course of the proceeding, I don't



             4  think it should be in our --



             5            MR. SHARBER:  And it was not.



             6            MR. MARTIN:  And It was not.



             7            Mr. Horwitz, yeah, that's fine.  You wanted to



             8  address commission?



             9            MR. HORWITZ:  Yes.  Regarding two matters.  The



            10  first and most important one is the last page before the



            11  transcript, the judicial review component.



            12            MR. MARTIN:  Yes.  And this is the page entitled,



            13  "Recommendation"?



            14            MR. HORWITZ:  No, it's the page entitled, "Judicial



            15  Review".



            16            MR. SHARBER:  Judicial review.



            17            MR. HORWITZ:  It should be the last page.



            18            MR. MARTIN:  Oh, okay.  Yes.



            19            MR. HORWITZ:  I want to make sure everybody is on



            20  the same page here.  So that first subsection, Number 1,



            21  provides that an appeal may be filed within 30-days, I think



            22  everyone is in agreement that that is correct.



            23            The second portion, I am just going to read it.



            24  "Upon failure to timely request judicial review of the



            25  decision by writ of certiorari, as provided in the section,
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             1  the decision shall be binding on final upon all parties".



             2            Now, I understand from this -- this provision from



             3  the rules, that the decision is not binding until the appeal



             4  process has either concluded or an appeal has not been taken.



             5  And the reason I emphasize this is because the City's



             6  attorneys have already approached the Board of Aldermen



             7  before this body has even approved this finding last week,



             8  before the appeal process has even begun to try to present



             9  findings.



            10            Now, I thought we were clear about the fact we do



            11  intend to appeal.  And I want to make sure everyone here is



            12  clear.  There is an appellate process that ought to be



            13  respected.  The decision is not binding and final until that



            14  process has concluded.



            15            So to the extent that there was any doubt, we



            16  intend to filed a petition for writ of certiorari, exercise



            17  appellate rights.  And my ask would be that everybody respect



            18  the process -- the due process that is part of this order, as



            19  part of the municipal code and that the City's counsel not



            20  rush to the Board of Alderman to present findings before that



            21  process is complete.



            22            MR. MARTIN:  Well, help me understand your concern.



            23  Paragraph one, says that you have 30 days to petition for a



            24  for writ of certiorari, paragraph two says if you don't do



            25  that, then the decision of to commission becomes final.  I'm
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             1  not clear what your concern is.



             2            MR. HORWITZ:  After we take this appeal, which we



             3  intend to do, while the appellate process is underway, the



             4  City's attorneys are going to approach the Board of Aldermen



             5  and present this body's decision as if it were final and



             6  binding when it is not yet final and binding and ask the



             7  Board of Alderman to act based on a none final, not yet



             8  binding and ask the Board of Alderman to act based on a



             9  nonfinal, not yet binding decision.  That's my concern.



            10            MR. MARTIN:  Well, let me say that:  While I



            11  respect your concern and I'm not saying it doesn't have



            12  merit, that's beyond the scope of our consideration.  All



            13  that we are asked to do is to submit the finding and



            14  recommendation.  What's done after that is beyond our



            15  control.



            16            MR. HORWITZ:  Understood.  I just want to make sure



            17  because this is your action and they are your attorneys



            18  that --



            19            MR. MARTIN:  No, our attorney is Gail Ashworth.



            20            MR. HORWITZ:  That's who I am referring to.



            21            MR. MARTIN:  Gail Vaughn Ashworth.  The City of



            22  Franklin is represented by separate counsel.  And what the



            23  City does is certainly up to the City.  They will be guided



            24  by their lawyer, we are guided by our counsel.



            25            MR. HORWITZ:  I understand that.  And I'm referring
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             1  to Ms. Ashworth here.  I want to make sure that everyone here



             2  and Ms. Ashworth are in agreement that it is not this body's



             3  intention for its decision to be final and binding until the



             4  appellate process has been concluded.



             5            MR. MARTIN:  It's our intention comply with the



             6  requirements of the Municipal Code as stated, and I don't



             7  think it's a misstatement of that.



             8            MR. HORWITZ:  No, it's a correct statement.



             9            MR. MARTIN:  Well, that is our intention.



            10            MR. HORWITZ:  Okay.  So next week when Ms. Ashworth



            11  has planned to address the Board of Alderman to present this



            12  decision as final and binding, I want to make sure that this



            13  commission is not on board with that.



            14            MR. MARTIN:  Well, I'm not giving any opinion at



            15  all.  I'm telling you that this is what the Code says and our



            16  responsibility is to enter an order, which we are hopefully



            17  going to do.



            18            What happens next week is beyond the scope of our



            19  consideration.



            20            MR. HORWITZ:  Well, not if it's --



            21            MR. MARTIN:  I'm not going to give you an advisory



            22  opinion on what should or shouldn't be done next week.



            23            MR. HORWITZ:  That I appreciate it.  I want to make



            24  sure that actions that are taken on this body's behalf



            25  comport with what this body is intending to do, and it's my
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             1  understanding from this accurate statement, that we are all



             2  in agreement that this decision is not binding and is not



             3  final until the appellate process has been completed.



             4            MR. MARTIN:  We are in the agreement that this is



             5  what the Manciple Code says and our responsibility is limited



             6  to making now our findings, which we are going to do.  We



             7  understand the concern.



             8            And the City Attorney is here, and I'm sure that



             9  the City will take your concern into consideration.  But



            10  it's -- your -- your point maybe we -- it's certainly maybe



            11  well taken, but its not something that we can do anything



            12  about.  In other words if -- if the Board of Mayor and



            13  Alderman elected to act on our recommendation, your point is



            14  they shouldn't do that until there has been a final review by



            15  the Chancery Court of Williamson County.  Well, I'm not going



            16  to tell the board of Alderman what they should or shouldn't



            17  do.  That is completely up to the Board.



            18            MR. HORWITZ:  I just want to make sure that the



            19  Board understands, that everybody else understands that this



            20  body's recommendation is not yet final and it is not yet bind



            21  ing.



            22            MR. MARTIN:  Well, I've heard what you've said, I



            23  think that's all you can say about it.  And I've said all I



            24  intend to say about it.  Thank you.



            25            Do you have anything else you want to bring to our

�                                                              12









             1  attention?



             2            MR. HORWITZ:  Yes.  The only other thing:  I want



             3  to confirm there have been no further deliberations between



             4  the hearing a few weeks ago and today?



             5            MR. MARTIN:  Do what?



             6            MR. HORWITZ:  There have been no further



             7  deliberations regarding this matter between July 27th and



             8  today; is that correct?



             9            MR. MARTIN:  Well, you tell me.  I'm not going to



            10  testify.  I will state frankly, I have not spoken to Ms.



            11  Wilson until this morning when she got here and we haven't



            12  talked about this case until we walked into this room.  And I



            13  have not spoken to Mr. Sharber and nor have I spoken to Ms.



            14  Thompson.  And I would assume that nobody else has talked



            15  with one another either.



            16            We've been instructed clearly to comply with the



            17  Open Meetings Act and that --



            18            MR. HORWITZ:  And that's --



            19            MR. MARTIN:  And this commission has complied with



            20  it strictly.



            21            MR. HORWITZ:  And that was my understanding, that



            22  was my assumption.  And the reason I mention it is because



            23  there are -- at least from my reading of the findings of fact



            24  included here and comparing them against the transcript,



            25  multiple findings of fact that were inserted into this
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             1  proposed written decision this body did not make.  So to the



             2  extend that the transcript is inconsistent with findings that



             3  were inserted in here by counsel, I just want to reflect that



             4  there were not further deliberations undertaken between the



             5  hearing and today.



             6            MR. MARTIN:  Well, the draft of the findings that



             7  have been presented to us along with the transcript is what



             8  we are to consider today.  I was pretty clear, I believe, at



             9  the meeting that my vote was based upon the entire record,



            10  which included the complaints that were presented, not the



            11  ones that weren't presented, the answer that was filed on



            12  behalf of your client, and all of the exhibits and the



            13  presentations that were made by the various folks that came



            14  forward.



            15            So my vote is based upon the entire record that was



            16  before me.  And I feel like the other members of the



            17  commission voted based upon that entire record as well.  This



            18  written document now will reflect our -- our completely



            19  accurate ruling based upon that entire record.  The fact that



            20  a -- a verbal comment wasn't necessarily made during the



            21  course of that meeting and, in my mind, does not preclude us



            22  from including facts as long as they are supported by the



            23  record.



            24            MR. HORWITZ:  And I appreciate that that is



            25  Mr. Chairman's view here.  I do want to note an objection to
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             1  findings that were included in this record that were not made



             2  by the commission.



             3            MR. MARTIN:  That were not articulated verbally?



             4            MR. HORWITZ:  Correct.



             5            MR. MARTIN:  Well, you and I just have to agree to



             6  disagree at this point.  If the findings in this order are



             7  supported by the record, then it's my suggestion that we are



             8  authorized to approve this order.  Ms. Ashworth, do you



             9  concur or disagree?



            10            MS. ASHWORTH:  I concur.



            11            MR. MARTIN:  Very well.



            12            MR. HORWITZ:  I just want my objection noted.



            13            MR. MARTIN:  All right.  Very good.



            14            All right.  So then the question becomes, do any of



            15  you have any concerns about the accuracy of the draft that



            16  we've received and whether there is a factual basis to



            17  support what's contained in the draft?



            18            MR. SHARBER:  I do not.



            19            MS. WILSON:  I do not.



            20            MR. MARTIN:  And I do not either.  I've read the



            21  entire transcript.  I've read the draft.  The fact that maybe



            22  something wasn't articulated in our meeting on the 27th of



            23  July, that's not in our written decision in the chairperson's



            24  mind does not preclude our inclusion in our written decision.



            25  So based upon what's been presented, do we have a motion to
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             1  approve the draft of the written decision of City of Franklin



             2  Ethics Commission as brought in this matter?



             3            MR. SHARBER:  So moved.



             4            MS. WILSON:  Second.



             5            MR. MARTIN:  All in favor?



             6            MR. SHARBER:  Aye.



             7            MS. WILSON:  Aye.



             8            MR. MARTIN:  And I vote as well in favor of



             9  approving it.



            10            I don't know of any other business.  Ms. Ashworth,



            11  do you know of any other business to come before us?



            12            MS. ASHWORTH:  No, I do not.  I think we can get



            13  the clean copy, I think that is marked a draft, entered today



            14  so that Mr. Horwitz can have his copy today.



            15            MR. MARTIN:  So if we have the clean copy, we can



            16  sign off on that it before leave.  Mr. Horwitz, good to see



            17  you.



            18            MR. HORWITZ:  I guess, let me just ask:  So the



            19  Commission has just made a recommendation, that's paragraph



            20  16 here, and this comes back to the first issue that I



            21  addressed, the timing of that recommendation?



            22            MR. MARTIN:  Do what?



            23            MR. HORWITZ:  I'm on the -- the provision that was



            24  just approved titled, "Recommendation", as paragraph 16.



            25            MR. MARTIN:  Yes.
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             1            MR. HORWITZ:  The timing of that recommendation is



             2  not reflected here.



             3            MR. MARTIN:  We will leave that to the Board.  We



             4  will leave that to the Board.



             5            MR. HORWITZ:  I would like to know the timing of



             6  this Commission's recommendation to the Board.



             7            MR. MARTIN:  Our recommendation is clear.  When and



             8  if the Board acts on our recommendation will be up to the



             9  Board of Mayor and Aldermen.



            10            MR. HORWITZ:  What I am trying to pin down is when



            11  the recommendation is made, and what I'm asking is that it



            12  not be made until the appellate process is concluded.



            13            MR. MARTIN:  I understand your request.  We are



            14  making our recommendation as reflected in this written



            15  document.  When and if the Board acts on it will be up to the



            16  Board okay.  Thank you.



            17            If there is no further business before the



            18  Commission, do I have a motion to adjourn?



            19            MR. SHARBER:  So moved.



            20            MS. WILSON:  Second.



            21            MR. MARTIN:  All if favor?



            22            MR. SHARBER:  Aye.



            23            MS. WILSON:  Aye.



            24            MR. MARTIN:  Same here.  If you will record my vote



            25  as aye.  Mr. Horwitz, good to see you.
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